
No. 8209

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

f

James A. Johnston, Warden of the United

States Penitentiary, Alcatraz Island,

Califomia,

Appellant^

vs.

Alice Lagomarsixo and Ray Lagomarsixo,

alias Edwin Murphy,
Appellees.

BRIEF FOR APPELLANT.

H. H. McPiKE,
United States Attorney,

Robert L. McWilliams,
Assistant United States Attorney,

A. J. ZlEPOLI,

Assistant United States Attorney,

Post Office Building, San Francisco,

Att.o!cikeys_for^A.p^ellant.^^

FILED
SEPl'ilKS

Ternatj-Walsh Printing Co., San Francisco

PAUL P. cerj-^N,





Subject Index

Page
Statement of the case 1

Facts of the ease 1

Assignment of errors 6

Question 6

Argument 6

Statute involved 6

Analysis of points and authorities relied upon by the

petitioner and appellee in support of the granting of

the writ of habeas corpus and order of discharge.... 8

Points and authorities in support of respondent's con-

tention that the three consecutive sentences imposed

under Counts Three, Four and Five in the Lagomar-

sino indictment were proper 15

Conclusion 19



Table of Authorities Cited

AUen Chrysler v. Zerbst, 81 Fed. (2d) 975,

Braden v. United States. 270 Fed. 441

Pages

12

. 8,13

Colbeck, et al. v. United States (C. C. A. 8), 14 Fed. f2d)

801 10

Ebeling v. Morgan, 237 U. S. 625 8, 15, 17, 18, 19, 20

Logan V. United States. 123 Fed. 291 17, 19, 20

Morgan v. Devine, 237 U. S. 632 13. 16. 17, 19

Parmagini v. United States (C. C. A. 9), 42 Fed. (2dj 721. 8, 13

Poffenbarger v. Aderhold (C. C. A. 5), 20 Fed. (2d) 42.. 17

Poffenbarger v. Aderhold, 4 Fed. Supp. 542, affirmed 67

Fed. (2d) 250, certiorari denied 290 U. S. 703 17

Revised Statutes, Section 5469...

Section 265, Title 18 U. S. C. A..

Section 312, Title 18 U. S. C. A..

Section 313, Title 18 U. S. C. A..

Section 315, Title 18 U. S. C. A..

Section 317, Title 18 U. S. C. A..

Sections 1387-1388, Title 26 U. S. C. A
Stevens v. M'Claughrv. 207 Fed. 18...

... 8,10

...17.19

...18,19

...15,16

16

13, 15, 20

13

8, 10, 12, 13

10



No. 8209

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

James A. Johnston^ Warden of the United

States Penitentiary, Alcatraz Island,

California,

Appellant,

vs.

Alice Lagomarsino and Ray Lagomarsino,

alias Edwin Murphy,
Appellees.

BRIEF FOR APPELIANT.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE.

This appeal is from an order of the United States

District Court for the Southern Division of the

Northern District of California granting a writ of

habeas corpus and discharging Ray Lagomarsino, alias

Edwin Murphy, from the custody of appellant.

(Tr. pp. 29 and 30.)

FACTS OF THE CASE.

Alice Lagomarsino, the mother of Ray Lagomar-

sino, alias Edwin Murphy, a prisoner at the United

States Penitentiary at Alcatraz Island, California,



successfully sought the release of her son by petition

for writ of habeas corpus (Tr. pp. 1 to 4, incL), which

was granted by the District Court of the United

States of America for the Northern Distiict of Cali-

fornia, Southern Division, on February 25, 1936.

(Tr. pp. 29 and 30.) Pursuant to said order, the

prisoner was discharged from the custody of ap-

pellant.

The petition rested upon the proposition that the

twenty year sentence imposed by the United States

District Court for the Northern District of California,

Southern Division, for violation of the postal laws of

the United States of America was excessive by ten

years, and that the prisoner, having served the valid

portion thereof, was entitled to his iimnediate release

on habeas corpus. To substantiate this proposition

the petitioner successfully contended that the theft

of three different pieces of mail by Ray Lagomarsino

from the same post office, and presumably the same

mail pouch, at the same time, constituted but one

offense instead of three as recited in the indictment;

for each of which he received three maximum consecu-

tive sentences of five years.

The sentences were imposed on January 14, 1926,

following violation of probation granted after a plea

of guilty to five counts on an indictment filed on

April 16, 1925, which alleged offenses committed at

Colma, California, on or about April 10, 1925. The

indictment in substance w^as in the following language

:

Comit One:

"did then and there unlawfully, wilfully, know-
ingly and feloniously break into a certain post



office and a building used in part as a post office,

at said Colma, with the intent on the part of them,

the said defendants, to commit larceny in such

buildins;, and in the part thereof so used as a

post office; * * *"

Count Two:

*'did then and there in violation of Section 189

of the Criminal Code of the United States unlaw-

fully, wilfully, knowingly and feloniously and

with intent to rob such mail, cut a certain mail

pouch used for the conveyance of the mail, to-wit,

a mail pouch bearing the following label :
' Post-

master, Colma, Calif., Special. Contents 2 #2
pouches, dated April 8th, 1925:' "

Count Three:

''did then and there, in violation of Section 194

of the Criminal Code of the United States, un-

lawfully, wilfully, knowingly and feloniously

steal, take and abstract from and out of an au-

thorized depository for mail matter, to-wit, the

Post Office at Colma, in the County of San Mateo,

aforesaid, a certain pai-cel addressed to H. M.
Russell, Room 255, Pacific Building, San Fran-

cisco, California, which said parcel was intended

to be conveyed by mail and carried and delivered

by and through and by means of the Post Office

establishment of the United States to the person

to whom the same was addressed:"

Count Four:

''did then and there, in violation of Section 194

of the Criminal Code of the United States, un-

lawfully, wilfully, knowingly and feloniously

steal, take and abstract from and out of an au-



thorized depository for mail matter, to-wit: the

Post Office at Colma, in the County of San Mateo,

aforesaid, a certain parcel addressed to Mr.

Aiigelo Revere, Box 145, Colma, California,

which said parcel was intended to be conveyed

by mail and carried and delivered by and through

and by means of the Post Office establishment of

the United States to the person to whom the same
was addressed-"

>

Count Five:

''did then and there, in violation of Section 194

of the Criminal Code of the United States, un-

lawfully, wilfully, knowingly and feloniously

steal, take and abstract from and out of an au-

thorized depositaiy for mail matter, to-wit: the

Post Office at Colma, in the County of San Mateo,

aforesaid, a certain insured parcel No. 17863,

addressed to Harry Deller, Box 95, Colma, Cali-

fornia, which said insured parcel was intended

to be conveyed by mail and carried and delivered

by and through and by means of the Post Office

establishment of the United States to the person

to whom the same was addressed." (Tr. pp. 10

to 14 incl.)

The sentence of the Court imposed on said 14th

day of January, 1926, by District Judge A. F. St.

Sure, is as follows:

''In this case the order allowing the defend-

ant Probation having been vacated and set aside,

it is ordered that the defendant Ray Lagomarsino
for the offense of which he stands convicted be

imjorisoned for the period of five (5) years each

on Counts 1 and 2 of the Indictment, terms of

imprisonment to run concurrently and to com-



mence and run from date hereof. That said de-

fendant b(^ imprisoned for the period of five (5)

years as to the 3rd Count of the Indictment,

term of imprisonment as to 3rd Comit to com-

mence and i*un upon the expiration and execution

of the judgment imposed upon said defendant

under counts 1 and 2. That said defendant be

imprisoned for the period of five (5) years as to

the 4th Count, term of imprisonment as to 4th

Count to commence and run at the expiration

and execution of the judgment imposed upon said

defendant under count 3. That defendant be im-

prisoned for the period of five (5) years as to

the 5th Count of the Indictment, term of im-

prisonment as to the 5th count to commence and
iTin at the expiration and execution of judgment
imposed on defendant under Count 4.

Terms of imprisonment to be executed upon
said defendant by imprisonment in the United
States Penitentiary to be designated by the United

States Attorney Gleneral."

(Tr. pp. 15 and 16.)

On February 13, 1936, Alice Lagomarsino filed her

petition as aforesaid. The Court concluded that

Counts Four and Five of the indictment, being mere

repetitions of Count Three, were contrary to law and

void, and afforded no basis for a sentence in excess

of the five years imposed under Count Three of

the indictment. For that reason, it ordered the dis-

charge from custody of the prisoner, Ray Lagomar-

sino.



ASSIGIiMENT OF ERRORS.

The errors assigned and relied upon on this appeal

are that:

1. The Court erred in ordering discharged the de-

tained referred to in said petition for writ of habeas

corpus.

2. The Court erred in holding that the allegations

contained in said petition for writ of habeas corpus

were sufficient in law to justify the granting of the

order discharging the detained person referred to

in the said petition for writ of habeas corpus. (Tr.

pp. 32 and 33.)

QUESTION.

Does the theft of three parcels of mail at one and

the same time, from the same depository, constitute

three offenses within the meaning of Section 317 of

Title 18 U. S. C. AJ

ARGUMENT.

STATUTE INVOLVED.

"Section 317, Title 18.—Stealing, secreting, or

embezzling mail matter.

Whoever shall steal, take, or abstract, or by

fraud or deception obtain, from or out of any

mail, post office or station thereof, or other au-

thorized depository for mail matter, or from a

letter or mail carrier, any letter, postal card,

package, bag, or mail, or shall abstract or remove

from any such letter, package, bag, or mail, any



article or thing contained therein, or shall secrete,

embezzle, or destroy any such letter, postal card,

bag, or mail, or any article or thing contained

therein; or whoever shall steal, take, or abstract,

or by fraud or deception obtain any letter, postal

card, package, bag, or mail, which has been left

for collection upon or adjacent to a collection box

or other authorized depository of mail matter; or

whoever shall buy, receive, or conceal, or aid in

buying, receiving, or concealing, or shall unlaw-

fully have in his possession, any letter, postal

card, package, bag, or mail, or any article or

thing contained therein, which has been so stolen,

taken, embezzled, or abstracted, as herein de-

scribed, knowing the same to have been so stolen,

taken, embezzled, or abstracted; or whoever shall

take any letter, postal card, or package out of

any post office or station thereof, or out of any

authorized depository for mail matter, or from

any letter or mail carrier, or w^hich has been in

any post office or station thereof, or other author-

ized depository, or in the custody of any letter

or mail carrier, before it has been delivered to

the person to whom it was directed, with a design

to obstruct the correspondence, or to pry into

the business oi* secrets of another, or shall open,

secrete, embezzle, or destroy the same, shall be

fined not more than $2,000, or imprisoned not

more than five years, or both."

As counsel for petitioner stated, 'Hhe question here-

in presented is one of first impression" in so far as

Section 317 of Title 18 U. S. C. A. is concerned, or

more precisely the first portion of that section which

concerns itself with the theft of any mail from any

Post Office or authorized depository.
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Appellant respectfully submits that the theft of each

and every letter or parcel from a Post Office consti-

tutes a separate offense under Section 317, supra, and

predicates this conclusion upon the language of the

Supreme Court of the United States in the case of

Eheling v. 31orgmi, 237 U. S. 625, which together with

other cases will be hereinafter discussed in detail.

However, before so doing, it would be advisable to

discuss the cases relied upon by the petitioner and

appellee herein.

ANALYSIS OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES RELIED UPON BY
THE PETITIONER AND APPELLEE IN SUPPORT OF THE
GRANTING OF THE WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS AND
ORDER OF DISCHARGE.

Appellee bases his position essentially upon the

cases of Braden v. United States, 270 Fed. 441, and

Stevens v. M'ClaugTiry, 207 Fed. 18, both of which are

cited with approval in the case of Parmagini v. United

States (C. C. A. 9), 42 Fed. (2d) 721. Although there

is a striking similarity between those cases and the

instant case, nevertheless a careful analysis of them

demonstrates that they are not conclusive, and that

the sounder interpretation of the law is that of the

Supreme Court in the case of Eheling v. Morgan,

supra.

The case of Stevens v. 3UClaughry, supra, was one

wherein the Court passed upon Revised Statutes 5469,

which is now part of Section 317, and which provides

as follows:

"Any ])erson who shall steal the mail, or steal

or take from or out of any mail or post-office,



branch post-office, or other authorized depository

for mail-matter, any letter or packet; any person

who shall take the mail, or any letter or packet

therefrom, or from any post-office, branch post-

office, or other authorized depository for mail-

matter, with or without the consent of the person

having custody thereof, and open, embezzle, or

destroy any such mail, letter, or package which
shall contain any note, bond, draft, check, war-

rant, revenue-stamp, postage-stamp, etc. * * *;

any person who shall, by fraud or deception, ob-

tain, from any person having custody thereof,

any such mail, letter, or packet containing any

such article of value shall, although not employed

in the postal service, be x:)unishable by imprison-

ment at hard labor for not less than one year and
not more than five years."

The Court in considering the third, fourth, fifth

and sixth counts, wherein the defendant Stevens was

charged with the theft of four different registered

letters deposited in the postoffice at Los Angeles by

the Farmers and Merchants National Bank and ad-

dressed to the Importers and Traders National Bank
of New^ York City, concluded as follows

:

''The averments in each of the counts of this

indictment that the six stealings occurred at the

same time, at the same jolace, from a mail car

described in each of them in the same Avords, and
that the registered letters described in the third,

fourth, fifth and sixth comits were such as in the

usual course of business would have been in the

mail pouch containing registered letters from Los
Angeles to New York described in the first count,

converge upon the mind with such com.])elling

force as to leave no doubt that all these stealinsrs
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were committed at the same time, were parts of

a single continuous criminal transaction, and that

they were inspired by the same indispensable

felonious intent." (p. 22.)

When it is noted that the language of the first sen-

tence of R. S. 5469 and its successor Section 317 is

substantially the same, and when to that fact is added

the identity of the indictment in the Stevens case with

the third, fourth and fifth counts of the Lagomarsino

indictment, the case of Stevens v. M^Claiighry seems

quite persuasive. It is true that each parcel referred

to in the third, fourth and fifth counts m the Lago-

marsino indictment bore the name of a dif-

ferent addressee, thus requiring separate proof in

each case. Practically the same situation obtained in

Stevens v. M'Claughry, for in the latter case there

was a general reference in the first two (-ounts to the

registered mail, which included the four separate let-

ters embodied in the later counts. But each of said

separate letters, while destined for the same addres-

see, nevertheless bore different registered numbers,

each of which required proof of identification.

As against this ajDparently persuasive language in

the case of Stevens v. M'Claughry, we have in the

same Circuit w^hat appears to appellant to be a case

to the contrary, Colheck, et al. v. United States (C. C.

A. 8, 1926), 14 Fed. (2d) 801. In that case it appears

that conviction was had under six counts of an indict-

ment charging violations of Section 317. Three sen-

tences of five years, each to run consecutively, im-

posed under Counts Twelve, Thirteen and Fourteen,

were challenged as void upon the ground that these
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counts charged one and the same offense. Count

Twelve charged the felonious receiving* and conceal-

ing of the contents of seventy-nine registered letters

stolen from the mails and from a pouch with lock

M9545, Rotary No. 113. The thirteenth count charged

the unlawful possession of the same seventy-nine reg-

istered letters, and the fourteenth count charged the

unlawful possession of 337 registered letters (which

apparently covered the entire haul of a robbery and

included the seventy-nine letters charged as unlaw-

fully possessed in Count Thirteen). The offense in

each count was laid on the same day and iuA^olved but

one enterprise. The Appellate Court, in affirming

the conviction and sentences, said:

"It is contended here that these three counts

charge one and the same offense, that the same
evidence was offered to sustain each of them, that

defendants could not be punished separately on

each count and that the court erred in adjudging

that they be separately punished on each coimt

and that the confinement so adjudged on each

count be served consecutively. We think it en-

tirely clear from the language of the section of

the Code that both possession and concealment

of United States mail which has been stolen are

made criminal off'enses if the person or persons

possessing or concealing the same knew at the

time that the same had been stolen. Possessing a

thing is a different act from concealing the same

thing. The former means to hold the thing, the

latter to hide the thing. One may hold today and

hide tomorrow. We, therefore, are of the opinion

that counts 12 and 13 charge separate and differ-

ent offenses. Likewise as between coimts 13 and

14. Count 13 charges the possession of the con-
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tents of 79 registered letters and packages, and
count 14 charges possession of the contents of

337 registered letters and packages. The proof

required to sustain the charge in the thirteenth

count would not be sufficient to sustain the charge

in the fourteenth count. It would require addi-

tional and different proof to sustain the latter

than that required to sustain the former." (p.

802.)

Thus, assuming it to be true that the seventy-nine

letters charged in the thirteenth count w^ere included

in the 337 letters charged in the fourteenth count, it

is reasonable to conclude that the Court affirmed, at

least imxtly, two punishments for the same offense

and that its decision with respect to said Counts Thir-

teen and Fourteen is contrary to the previous decision

in the case of Stevens v. M'Claughry.

Further, the doctrine announced in the case of

Stevens v. M'Claughry now appears to have been re-

pudiated by the Tenth Circuit Court in the case of

Allen Chrysler v. Zerhst (Warden), 81 Fed. (2d)

975, decided February 22, 1936. In the Chrysler case

consecutive maximum sentences were imposed under

two counts, one charging the unlawful transportation

in interstate commerce of a stolen automobile, the

other count charging the unlawful receiving and con-

cealing of the same automobile. On habeas corpus

instituted after serving the first sentence, it was con-

tended that only one offense was involved, and the

case of Stevens v. MXHaughry, supra, was urged in

support thereof. The Appellate Court, however, af-

firmed the plural sentences, and stated that the doc-
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trine announced in Stevens v. M'Claughry had been

expressly rejected by the Supreme (.^ourt in Morgan

V. Devine, 237 U. S. 632, which case will be herein-

after discussed. Thus, from the foregoing cases it is

apparent that the decisions construing Section 317

are of no particular assistance in determining the

question of law here involved. This brings us to a

consideration of the other two cases relied upon by

the appellee in support of his petition for writ of

habeas corpus.

The other two cases, Braden v. United States, supra,

and Parmagini v. United States, supra, involved nar-

cotic violations. In the Braden case, involving viola-

tions of Sections 1387-1388, Title 26 U. S. C. A., which

makes it an offense to have possession of any untax

paid drug, there was a conviction under four counts,

with sentence under each count to rmi consecutively.

Each count charged possession of a different dnig

on the same day. On appeal the judgment was af-

firmed under only one count, the Court holding that

the words ''any of the aforesaid drugs" simply

meant that if a defendant were found in possession

of any of the mentioned drugs he would be guilty of

one offense. The Court reached this conclusion upon

the theory that the facts in the case showed that the

same evidence was required to sustain each coimt.

The facts in the Lagomarsino case are more closely

analogous to the facts in the Braden case than in the

Parmagini case. In the latter case, the first count

charged the unlawful sale and distribution of mor-

phine, the second count charged fraudulent conceal-

ment of the same morphine, and the third count
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charged the unlawful dispensing and distribution of

opium, the fourth count charged the fraudulent con-

cealment of the same opimn, and the fifth count

charged a conspiracy to commit the substantive of-

fenses urged in the previous count. A sentence of

five years was imposed for the sale of morphine and

ten years for the concealment of the same morphine,

to run consecutively. A sentence of five years was

imposed for the distribution of opimn and ten years

for the concealment of the same opimn, these sen-

tences to run consecutively to each other but concur-

rently with the sentence imposed under the morphine

counts, making a total of fifteen years. On appeal it

was held that the transactions alleged in Counts One

and Three were in entirety, and that the punishment

for distributing the opium was imposed for the same

offense as the punishment for sale of morphine. The

Court, however, affirmed the judgments because they

were made to run concurrently. These two decisions

apparently convinced the lower Court in the instant

case that Lagomarsino's contention, to the effect that

the theft of the three parcels at one and the same time

from the same depository, constituted one offense, was

sound. As the lower Court said:

''The foregoing decisions indicated counts

three, four and five were all based in the same
transaction and that Lagomarsino could receive

only one sentence for abstracting the parcels in

question. Therefore, counts four and five, being

merely re])etitions of count three, were contrary

to law and void and afforded no basis for any

sentence.
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''For these reasons the writ will issue and

Lag'omarsino will be discharged from custody.

See: Stevens v. McClaughry, 207 Fed. 18 (C. C.

A. 8), cited with approval in Parinagini v. U. S.

(C. C. A. 9) supra. Ebeling v. Morgan, 237 U. S.

625, appears to be distinguishable." (Tr. p. 29.)

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES IN SUPPORT OF RESPONDENT'S
CONTENTION THAT THE THREE CONSECUTIVE SEN-

TENCES IMPOSED UNDER COUNTS THREE, FOUR AND
FIVE IN THE LAGOMARSINO INDICTMENT WERE PROPER.

It is the conclusion of the District Court that

Ebelhig v. 31organ, 237 U. S. 625, "appears to be dis-

tinguishable''. With this conclusion your appellant

disagrees. The constmction given by the Supreme

Court to the postal statute therein involved, which is

similai" in language to that of Section 317, when ap-

plied to the facts of the case now before this Honor-

able Court, is controlling and should cause this Court

to conclude that the District Court erred in ordering

the discharge of appellee. Before discussing the case

of Eheling v. Morgan, supra, it might be well to first

consider other cases construing postal statutes and a

counterfeiting statute whose language is not dissimi-

lar to Section 317.

Section 313 of Title 18, U. S. C. A., provides pun-

ishment of three years in the case of one who "shall

steal, purloin or embezzle any mail bag or other ]:>rop-

erty belonging to the Post Office Department, or shall

appropriate any such property to his own use, or con-

vey aw-a}^ any such property to the hindrance of pub-
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lie service." Section 315 of Title 18, U. S. C. A., pro-

vides five years imprisonment for one who breaks

into or attempts to break into a post office with intent

to commit any larceny or depredation.

In Morgan v. Devine, supra, the defendant having

been sentenced to consecutive terms of imx3risonment

under two counts charging, respectively, the breaking

into a post office with intent to commit larceny in

violation of Section 315, and the stealing of stamps

and postal funds in violation of Section 313, con-

tended that the acts charged in the second count were

done at the same time and constituted but one offense.

The Supreme Court held that each of the mentioned

sections defined a distinct offense, using the illustra-

tion that although one might successfully break into

a post office with intent to steal, such intent might be

frustrated or abandoned. Although the fact remains

that here two offenses are charged in the indictment,

''the breaking into a post office", and the ''stealing

of stamps and postal funds", whereas in the Lago-

marsino case the defendant was charged in the third,

fourth and fifth counts only with theft, nevertheless

the following language in the said case of Morgan v.

Devine, at page 640, is of some assistance in deter-

mining the interpretation to be placed upon the facts

and law now before the Court. There the Court said

:

"the test is not whether the criminal intent is one

and the same and inspiring the whole transaction,

but whether separate acts have been committed

with the requisite criminal intent and are such as

are made punishable by the Act of Congress. See

Burton v. United States, 202 U. S. 344."
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In Poffenbarger v. Aderhold (('. C A. 5), 20 Fed.

(2d) 42, the contention that separate punishments for

stealing mail bags and for taking and abstracting

mail matter from such bags constitute double jeopardy

was rejected upon the authority of Morgan v. Devine,

supra, and Eheling v. Morgan, supra. Incidentally,

Poffenbarger raised the same contention subsequently

in habeas corpus proceedings and the petition was

dismissed. (See 4 Fed. Supp. 542.) The dismissal

was affirmed (67 Fed. (2d) 250) and certiorari de-

nied. (See 290 U. S. 703.)

In interpreting Section 265 of Title 18, U. S. 0. A.,

which reads as follows

:

"Whoever * * * shall keep in possession or

conceal with like intent any falsely made, forged,

comiterfeited or altered obligation or other se-

curity of the United States, shall be" punished

in the manner provided. (Italics ours.)

the Circuit Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit in

the case of Logan v. United States, 123 Fed. 291, held

that imder this section a defendant might be con-

victed of a separate offense for each one of the forged

obligations he kept in possession with intent to pass.

At page 293, the Court said

:

"The contention that the defendant below could

not properly be convicted under the fifteenth

count of keeping in his ]:)ossession a certain

forged note with intent to pass it, and imder the

sixteenth count of keepino- in his possession an-

other forged note with intent to pass it—in other

words, that the keepine," of two separate forged

notes in his possession with intent to pass them

was one act—does not appeal to us as well
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founded. The keeping, just as the making and

the passing, of each forged note, is, or may be

treated as, a separate and distinct offense."

But even more conclusive and controlling is the

case of Eheling v. Morgan, supra, which involves the

construction of Section 312 of Title 18, U. S. C. A.

That section provides as follows:

'^ Injuring Mail Bags. Whoever shall tear, cut,

or otherwise injure any mail bag, pouch, or other

thing used or designed for use in the conveyance

of the mail, or shall draw or break any staple or

loosen any part of any lock, chain, or strap at-

tached thereto, with intent to rob or steal any such

mail, or to render the same insecure, shall be fined

not more than $500, or imprisoned not more than

three years, or both."

In that case, the second, third, fourth, fifth, sixth,

and seventh counts of the indictment charged that on

a certain date Ebeling did feloniously cut and injure

a certain mail bag. Each count involved a different

mail bag. There was a plea of guilty with a sentence

of three years on the second count, and like sentences

on the third, fourth, fifth, and sixth coimts, to run

consecutively with the sentence under the second count

and with each other. After Ebeling had seized the

sentence on the second count he sought his release by

habeas corpus upon the ground that the cutting of the

bags constituted a single offense. In affirming the judg-

ment the Supreme Court stated as follows ('p^ge 629) :

'' Reading the statute with a view to ascertain-

ing its meaning, it is apparent that it undertakes

to make an offender of anyone who shall cut, tear,
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or otherwise injure any mail bag, or who shall

draw or break any staple or loosen any part of

any lock, chain or strap attached thereto, with the

felonious intent denounced by the statute. These

words plainly indicate that it was the intention

of the lawmakers to protect each and every mail

bag from felonious injuiy and mutilation. When-
ever any one mail bag is thus torn, cut or injured,

the oifense is complete. Although the transaction

of cutting the mail bags was in a sense continuous,

the complete statutory offense was committed

every time a mail bag was cut in the manner de-

scribed, with the intent charged. The offense as

to each separate bag was complete when that bag

was cut, irrespective of any attack upon, or

mutilation of, any other bag. The words are so

plain as to require little discussion or further

amplification to ascertain their meaning. The
separate counts each charged by its distinctive

number the separate bag and each time one of

them was cut there was, as we have said, a sep-

arate offense committed against the statute. Con-

gress evidently intended to protect the mail in

each sack, and to make an attack thereon in the

manner described a distinct and separate offense."

CONCLUSION.

The language of the Court in Morgan v. Devine,

supra, and the unqualified construction placed by the

Court in Logan v. United States, supra, upon Section

265 of Title 18 U.S.C.A., and by the Supreme Court

upon Section 312 U.S.C.A. in Ebeling v. Morgan,

supra, lead to but one conclusion, namely, that the

theft of the three parcels of mail at one and the same
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time, from the same depository, constituted separate

offenses. For if, as held in the case of Logan v.

United States, supra, the possession of each forged

note is a sex)arate and distinct offense, and as held in

the case of Eheling v. Morgan, supra, the cutting of

each mail bag is a separate off'ense, it follows that the

theft of each and every parcel from a depository of

mail matter is a separate offense under Section 317.

We therefore respectfully submit that the Court

below erred in granting the writ of habeas corpus and

ordering the discharge of Ray Lagomarsino, alias

Edwin Murphy, from the custody of the appellant,

and that the order appealed from should be reversed.

Dated, San Francisco,

September 14, 1936.
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